
Atkinson, Perrin, Battersby, Ferrari, Washbrooke, Austin and Robinson are
some of tiie more familiar names associated with the community surrounding
Pelton Junction.

Presently located at the site of the old Pelton Tower is a busy intersection
through which passes both Highway #98 and Walker Road.

FAIRPLAY AND BETHEL

The communities of Fairplay and Bethel are not centralized at any particular
crossroad or site. Generally, the two surround the Baseline Road and received
their titles from Bethel United Church built in 1888 on Baseline Road, and from
the first post office established in 1897 in that area. The post office was original
ly situated in the home of Mr. Dennis Perrin, which a Mr. Robert Hurst had
named 'Fairplay', and thereby gave the community its name.

The mail was picked up every Tuesday and Friday from Tecumseh and taken
to Mr. Perrin's home. Mr. Perrin himself delivered the mail until 1909, at which
time it was moved to the home of Sam McKenzie, and delivered by James
Quick until rural mail delivery started from Maidstone in approximately 1912.

In 1895 the 'Union Cheese Factory' was built on a corner of the Fairbairn
property, located just off of the Baseline Road and close to the Maidstone-
Sandwich South townline. It was closed in 1906 but reopened in 1908, finally
being torn down in 1927 after going out of operation for the second time. Mr.
Wood was an early president of the cheese factory and Dennis Perrin was
Secretary.

One popular personality of the Fairplay community was Louisa Payne. Louisa
lived with her parents as slaves in the United States until they found freedom in
Canada in the early 1800's. The family came to Sandwich South at the turn of
the 19th Century, and built a log house on the east side of the 9th Concession in
1807.

Miss Payne remained in this house until she died of pneumonia in 1937 at
the age of 97 years. She was buried in the Fairbairn Cemetary.

Miss Payne was best-loved by the children of the Fairplay Community.

She grew beautiful flowers and although the house and surrourid-
ings were just ready to topple over, she was always ready to show
the school childrer) passirig by, who stopped to chat with her often,
her lovely things [including stored period costumes] and perhaps
give them a rusti-coated apple, and let them play with the many
dogs and cats around. She was a big person and had a heart and
voice just as big. *84

In 1913, Mr. Thomas Fairbairn willed one acre of his land to Sandwich South
township to be used as a cemetary. Upon the township's refusal to accept the
land, it was granted to Bethel United Church, which honoured the Fairbairn
request, and turned it into a private cemetary. Many of the area's older resid
ents have been buried in the Fairbairn Cemetary located on Baseline Road.
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Louisa Payne pictured here outside her sided log home which was originally built in 1807. Louisa was a
resident of the Fairplay communityand had escaped as a slavefrom the United States with her parents.
Miss Payne died in 1937at the age of97, a well-knownand beloved lady.

Mrs. Crowder.

Jean Hill • His. ofFairplay 1951.

On April 21, 1905 gas and oil was struck, and a well established on the farm
of Ed. Dunn at Fairplay; followed on May 19 of the same year, by the finding
of gas on the John Hayes Farm, Canal Street, at a depth of 123 feet. His farm
was also part of the Fairplay community. However, neither well proved sig
nificantly productive.

Typical of all the other settlements in the area, several of its residents have
'Crown deeds' to their lands and many of the farms have been passed down to
the fifth generation. Ures, Frith MacKenzie, O'Keefe, Plant, Perrin, Lavin,
Ferry, Marshall, Fairbairn, Hurst, Quick, Croft, Nagorsen, St. Louis, Watson,
Copeland, Mooney, Hill and Robinson are names linked to the Fairplay, Bethel
settlement.
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The Robinson homestead, established by Harold Robinson in 1873, and pictured here as it appeared in
1910.

The farm is located on the eighth concession near the Baseline Road.

FAROUGH SETTLEMENT [Greaves Corners]
The Farough settlement is located on Maiden Road south of Maidstone and

nearing the Townline Road. The settlement acquired its name from the promin
ence of the Farough family in this particular region. The most notable of the
Farough personalities was a Mr. John B. Farough, (Jean Baptiste).

John B. Farough was both a farmer and a 'stockman' located, in 1904, on Lot
3 Concession 10 in Sandwich South. Mr. Farough was born on February 28,
1848 in Lansdowne, Upper Canada, the son of Joseph and Sarah (Delisle)
Farough. Joseph Farough was born in 1820 at Trois Rivieres Quebec, and Sarah
was born in Montreal in 1821. The two were married in Montreal and moved to
Essex in 1848. Sarah's father was a soldier in the War of 1812.

Joseph Farough purchased 'wild land' in Sandwich South and erected a log
cabin, later to be replaced by one of hewn logs, and later still by a frame struct
ure. Mr. Joseph Farough died on October 12, 1876 and Mrs. Farough died in
May of 1892. Joseph and Sarah had fourteen children of which Peter, Joseph,
Nicholas, Caroline, Lawrence, and John B. married into local families and re
mained settled surrounding the original homestead.

John B. Farough was educated by his Mother and stayed on to work on his
parents' farm. Later he bought 100 acres of 'wild land' adjoining the home
stead, and began his own farm. In 1873, John B. married Jemima G. Collins,
the daughter of Charles Collins from Maistone Township. John B. Farough was
a farmer of two plots in Sandwich South and was also a livestock raiser and
trader. He had eleven children.*85
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